MULTI-SECTOR SERVICE ACCOUNTABILITY AGREEMENT

THE AGREEMENT effective as of the 1st day of April, 2014

BETWEEN:

NORTH WEST LOCAL HEALTH INTEGRATION NETWORK (the "LIHIN")

- and -

CANADIAN MENTAL HEALTH ASSOCIATION, THUNDER BAY (the "HSP")

Table of Contents

Article 1.0 - Definitions and Interpretation	4
Article 2.0 - Term and Nature of the Agreement	8
Article 3.0 - Provision of Services	8
Article 4.0 - Funding	10
Article 5.0 - Repayment and Recovery of Funding	12
Article 6.0 - Planning and Integration	14
Article 7.0 - Performance	16
Article 8.0 - Reporting, Accounting and Review	17
Article 9.0 - Acknowledgement of LHIN Support	20
Article 10.0 - Representations, Warranties and Covenants	20
Article 11.0 - Limitation of Liability, Indemnity and Insurance	22
Article 12.0 - Termination of Agreement	24
Article 13.0 - Notice	-27
Article 14.0 - Additional Provisions	27
Article 15.0 - Entire Agreement	29
List of Schedules	30
Schedule A - Description of Services	31
Schedule B - Service Plan	33
Schedule C - Reports	34

Schedule D - Directives, Guidelines and Policies	37
Schedule E - Performance	39
Schedule F - Project Funding Agreement Template	47
Schedule G - Compliance	50

.

.

THE AGREEMENT effective as of the 1st day of April, 2014

BETWEEN:

NORTH WEST LOCAL HEALTH INTEGRATION NETWORK (the "LHIN")

- and -

CANADIAN MENTAL HEALTH ASSOCIATION, THUNDER BAY (the "HSP")

The service accountability agreement. The service accountability agreement supports a collaborative relationship between the LHIN and the HSP to improve the health of Ontarians through better access to high quality health services, to co-ordinate health care in local health systems and to manage the health system at the local level effectively and efficiently.

In this context, the HSP and the LHIN agree that the LHIN will provide funding to the HSP on the terms and conditions set out in this Agreement to enable the provision of services to the local health system by the HSP.

In consideration of their respective agreements set out below, the LHIN and the HSP covenant and agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1.0 - DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

- 1.1 Definitions. In this Agreement the following terms will have the following meanings:
 - "Accountability Agreement" refers to the agreement in place between the MOHLTC and the LHIN pursuant to the terms of section 18 of the Act;
 - "Act" means the under the from time to time;
 - "Agreement" means this agreement and includes the Schedules and any instrument amending this agreement or the Schedules;
 - "Annual Balanced Budget" has the meaning set out in subsection 4.5(b);
 - "Applicable Law" means all federal, provincial or municipal laws, regulations, common law, any orders, rules or by-laws that are applicable to the HSP, the Services, this Agreement and the Parties' obligations under this Agreement during the term of this Agreement;

"Applicable Policy" means any orders, rules, policies, directives, or standards of practice issued or adopted by the LHIN, the MOHLTC or other ministries or agencies of the province of Ontario that are applicable to the HSP, the Services, this Agreement and the Parties' obligations under this Agreement during the term of this Agreement. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Applicable Policy includes the other documents identified in Schedule D:

"Board" means:

- (i) in respect of an HSP that does not have a Long-Term Care Home Service Accountability Agreement with the LHIN and Is:
 - (a) a corporation, the board of directors;
 - (b) a First Nation, the band council; and
 - (c) a municipality, the municipal council;

and,

- (ii) in respect of an HSP that has a Long-Term Care Home Service Accountability Agreement with the LHIN and is:
 - (a) a corporation, the board of directors;
 - (b) a First Nation, the band council;
 - (c) a municipality, the committee of management;
 - a board of management established by one or more municipalities or by one or more First Nations' band councils, the members of the board of management;

"BPSAA" means the *Broader Public Sector Accountability Act, 2010* and regulations made under the *Broader Public Sector Accountability Act, 2010*, as it and they may be amended from time to time;

"Budget" means the budget approved by the LHIN and appended to this Agreement in Schedule B;

"CEO" means the individual accountable to the Board for the provision of the Services in accordance with the terms of this Agreement;

"Chair" means, if the HSP is:

- (a) a corporation, the Chair of the Board;
 - (b) a First Nation, the Chief; and
 - (c) a municipality, the Mayor.

or such other person properly authorized by the Board or under Applicable Law;

*CFMA" means the Commitment to the Future of Medicare Act, 2004, and the regulations made under the Commitment to the Future of Medicare Act, 2004, as it and they may be amended from time to time;

"Compliance Declaration" means a compliance declaration substantially in the form set out in Schedule G;

"Confidential information" means information that is: (i) marked or otherwise identified as confidential by the disclosing Party at the time the information is provided to the receiving Party; and (ii) eligible for exclusion from disclosure at a public board meeting in accordance with section 9 of the Act.

Confidential Information does not include information that: (a) was known to the receiving Party prior to receiving the information from the disclosing Party; (b) has become publicly known through no wrongful act of the receiving Party; or (c) is required to be disclosed by law, provided that the receiving Party provides Notice in a timely manner of such requirement to the disclosing Party, consults with the disclosing Party on the proposed form and nature of the disclosure, and ensures that any disclosure is made in strict accordance with Applicable Law;

"Conflict of Interest" in respect of an HSP, includes any situation or circumstance where in relation to the performance of its obligations under this Agreement:

- (a) the HSP;
- (b) a member of the HSP's Board; or
- (c) any person employed by the HSP who has the capacity to influence the HSP's decision,

has other commitments, relationships or financial interests that:

- (a) could or could be seen to interfere with the HSP's objective, unbiased and impartial exercise of its judgement; or
- could or could be seen to compromise, impair or be incompatible with the effective performance of its obligations under this Agreement;

"controlling shareholder" of a corporation means a shareholder who or which holds (or another person who or which holds for the benefit of such shareholder), other than by way of security only, voting securities of such corporation carrying more than 50% of the votes for the election of directors, provided that the votes carried by such securities are sufficient, if exercised, to elect a majority of the board of directors of such corporation;

"Days" means calendar days;

"Effective Date" means April 1, 2014;

"eHealth" means the coordinated and integrated use of electronic systems, information and communication technologies to facilitate the collection, exchange and management of personal health information in order to improve the quality, access, productivity and sustainability of the healthcare system;

"FIPPA" means the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (Ontario) and the regulations made under the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (Ontario), as it and they may be amended from time to time;

"Funding" means the amounts of money provided by the LHIN to the HSP in each Funding Year of this Agreement;

"Funding Year" means in the case of the first Funding Year, the period commencing on the Effective Date and ending on the following March 31, and in the case of Funding Years subsequent to the first Funding Year, the period commencing on the date that is April 1 following the end of the previous Funding Year and ending on the following March 31;

"HSP's Personnel and Volunteers" means the controlling shareholders (if any), directors, officers, employees, agents, volunteers and other representatives of the HSP.

In addition to the foregoing, HSP's Personnel and Volunteers shall include the contractors and subcontractors and their respective shareholders, directors, officers, employees, agents, volunteers or other representatives;

"Indemnified Parties" means the LHIN and its officers, employees, directors, independent contractors, subcontractors, agents, successors and assigns and her Majesty the Queen in Right of Ontario and her Ministers, appointees and employees, independent contractors, subcontractors, agents and assigns. Indemnified Parties also includes any person participating on behalf of the LHIN in a Review;

"Interest Income" means interest earned on the Funding;

"MOHETC" means the Minister of Health and Long-Term Care or the Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care, as is appropriate in the context;

"Notice" means any notice or other communication required to be provided pursuant to this Agreement, the Act or the CFMA;

"Party" means either of the LHIN or the HSP and "Parties" means both of the LHIN and the HSP;

"Performance Agreement" means an agreement between an HSP and its CEO that requires the CEO to perform in a manner that enables the HSP to achieve the terms of this Agreement and any additional performance improvement targets set out in the HSP's annual quality improvement plan under the Excellent Care for All Act, 2010;

"Performance Factor" means any matter that could or will significantly affect a Party's ability to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement;

"Project Funding Agreement" means an agreement in the form of Schedule F that incorporates the terms of this Agreement and enables the LHIN to provide one-time or short term funding for a specific project or service that is not already described in Schedule A:

"Reports" means the reports described in Schedule C as well as any other reports or information required to be provided under the Act or this Agreement;

"Review" means a financial or operational audit, investigation, inspection or other form of review requested or required by the LHIN under the terms of the Act or this Agreement, but does not include the annual audit of the HSP's financial statements:

"Schedule" means any one of, and "Schedules" means any two or more, as the context requires, of the schedules appended to this Agreement including the following:

Schedule A: Description of Services

Schedule B: Service Plan

Schedule C: Reports

Schedule D: Directives, Guidelines and Policies

Schedule E: Performance

Schedule F: Project Funding Agreement Template

Schedule G: Compliance

"Service Plan" means the Operating Plan and Budget appended as Schedule B; and

"Services" means the care, programs, goods and other services described in Schedule A and in any Project Funding Agreement executed pursuant to this Agreement. "Services" includes the type, volume, frequency and availability of the care, programs, goods and other services.

1.2 Interpretation. Words in the singular include the plural and vice-versa. Words in one gender include all genders. The headings do not form part of this Agreement. They are for convenience of reference only and will not affect the interpretation of this Agreement. Terms used in the Schedules shall have the meanings set out in this Agreement unless separately and specifically defined in a Schedule in which case the definition in the Schedule shall govern for the purposes of that Schedule.

ARTICLE 2.0 - TERM AND NATURE OF THIS AGREEMENT

- 2.1 Term. The term of this Agreement will commence on the Effective Date and will expire on March 31, 2017 unless terminated earlier or extended pursuant to its terms.
- 2.2 A Service Accountability Agreement. This Agreement is a service accountability agreement for the purposes of subsection 20(1) of the Act and Part III of the CFMA.
- 2.3 Notice. Notice was given to the HSP that the LHIN intended to enter into this Agreement. The HSP hereby acknowledges receipt of such Notice in accordance with the terms of the CFMA.
- 2.4 Prior Agreements. The Parties acknowledge and agree that all prior agreements for the Services terminated on March 31, 2014. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Project Funding Agreements that by their terms continue beyond March 31, 2014 remain in effect.

ARTICLE 3.0 - PROVISION OF SERVICES

- 3:4 Provision of Services. --
 - (a) The HSP will provide the Services in accordance with, and otherwise comply with:
 - (i) the terms of this Agreement, including the Service Plan;
 - (ii) Applicable Law; and
 - (iii) Applicable Policy.
 - (b) When providing the Services, the HSP will meet the performance standards and conditions identified in Schedule E.
 - (c) Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, the HSP will not reduce, stop, start, expand, cease to provide or transfer the provision of the Services or change its Service Plan except with Notice to the LHIN, and if required by Applicable Law or Applicable Policy, the prior written consent of the LHIN.

(d) Unless the HSP is a community care access centre, the HSP will not restrict or refuse the provision of Services to an individual, directly or indirectly, based on the geographic area in which the person resides in Ontario.

3.2 Subcontracting for the Provision of Services.

- (a) The Parties acknowledge that, subject to the provisions of the Act, the HSP may subcontract the provision of some or all of the Services. For the purposes of this Agreement, actions taken or not taken by the subcontractor, and Services provided by the subcontractor, will be deemed actions taken or not taken by the HSP, and Services provided by the HSP.
- (b) When entering into a subcontract, the HSP agrees that the terms of the subcontract will enable the HSP to meet its obligations under this Agreement. Without limiting the foregoing, the HSP will include a provision that permits the LHiN or its authorized representatives, to audit the subcontractor in respect of the subcontract if the LHiN or its authorized representatives determine that such an audit would be necessary to confirm that the HSP has complied with the terms of this Agreement.
- (c) Nothing contained in this Agreement or a subcontract will create a contractual relationship between any subcontractor or its directors, officers, employees, agents, partners, affiliates or volunteers and the LHIN.
- 3.3 Conflict of Interest. The HSP will use the Funding, provide the Services and otherwise fulfil its obligations under this Agreement, without an actual, potential or perceived Conflict of Interest. The HSP will disclose to the LHIN without delay any situation that a reasonable person would interpret as an actual, potential or perceived Conflict of Interest and comply with any requirements prescribed by the LHIN to resolve any Conflict of Interest.

3.4 effealth / Information Technology Compliance. The HSP agrees to:

- (a) assist the LHIN to implement provincial eHealth priorities for 2013-15 and thereafter in accordance with the Accountability Agreement, as may be amended from time to time;
- (b) comply with any technical and information management standards, including those related to data, architecture, technology, privacy and security set for health service providers by the MOHLTC, eHealth Ontario or the LHIN within the timeframes set by the MOHLTC or the LHIN as the case may be;
- (c) implement and use the approved provincial eHealth solutions identified in the LHIN eHealth plan;
- (d) implement technology solutions that are compatible or interoperable with the provincial blueprint and with the LHIN eHealth plan; and
- (e) include in its annual planning submissions, plans for achieving eHealth priority initiatives, including full adoption of Ontario Laboratory Information System by March 2015.

3.5 Policies, Guidelines, Directives and Standards. Either the LHiN or the MOHLTC will give the HSP Notice of any amendments to the manuals, guidelines or policies identified in Schedule D. Amendments will be effective on the first day of April following the receipt of the Notice or on such other date as may be advised by the LHIN or MOHLTC as the case may be. By signing a copy of this Agreement, the HSP acknowledges that it has a copy of the documents identified in Schedule D.

ARTICLE 4.0 - FUNDING

- 4.1 Funding. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, and in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Accountability Agreement, the LHIN:
 - (a) will provide the funds identified in Schedule B to the HSP for the purpose of providing or ensuring the provision of the Services;
 - (b) may pro-rate the funds identified in Schedule B to the date on which this Agreement is signed, if that date is after April 1; and
 - (c) will deposit the funds in regular instalments, once or twice monthly, over the term of this Agreement, into an account designated by the HSP provided that the account resides at a Canadian financial institution and is in the name of the HSP.
- 4.2 Limitation on Payment of Funding. Despite section 4.1, the LHIN:
 - (a) will not provide any funds to the HSP until this Agreement is fully executed;
 - (b) will not provide any funds to the HSP until the HSP meets the insurance requirements described in section 11.4;
 - (c) will not be required to continue to provide funds in the event the HSP breaches any of its obligations under this Agreement, until the breach is remedied to the LHIN's satisfaction; and
 - (d) upon notice to the HSP, may adjust the amount of funds it provides to the HSP in any Funding Year based upon the LHIN's assessment of the information contained in the Reports.
- 4.3 Appropriation. Funding under this Agreement is conditional upon an appropriation of moneys by the Legislature of Ontario to the MOHLTC and funding of the LHIN by the MOHLTC pursuant to the Act. If the LHIN does not receive its anticipated funding, the LHIN will not be obligated to make the payments required by this Agreement.
- 4.4 Additional Funding.
 - (a) Unless the LHIN has agreed to do so in writing, the LHIN is not required to provide additional funds to the HSP for providing additional Services or for exceeding the requirements of Schedule E.

(b) The HSP may request additional funding by submitting a proposal to amend its Service Plan. The HSP will abide by all decisions of the LHIN with respect to a proposal to amend the Service Plan and will make whatever changes are requested or approved by the LHIN. The Service Plan will be amended to include any approved additional funding.

4.5 Conditions of Funding.

- (a) The HSP will:
 - (i) fulfill all obligations in this Agreement:
 - use the Funding only for the purpose of providing the Services In accordance with Applicable Law, Applicable Policy and the terms of this Agreement;
 - (iii) spend the Funding only in accordance with the Service Plan; and
 - (iv) maintain an Annual Balanced Budget.
- (b) "Annual Balanced Budget" means that, in each Funding Year of the term of this Agreement, the total expenses of the HSP are less than or equal to the total revenue, from all sources, of the HSP.
- (c) The LHIN may impose such additional terms or conditions on the use of the Funding which it considers appropriate for the proper expenditure and management of the Funding.

4.6 Interest.

- (a) If the LHIN provides the Funding to the HSP prior to the HSP's immediate need for the Funding, the HSP shall place the Funding in an interest bearing account in the name of the HSP at a Canadian financial institution.
- (b) Interest Income must be used, within the fiscal year in which it is received, to provide the Services.
- (c) Interest Income will be reported to the LHIN and is subject to year-end reconciliation. In the event that some or all of the Interest Income is not used to provide the Services,
 - the LHIN may deduct the amount equal to the unused interest income from any further Funding instalments under this or any other agreement with the HSP; and/or
 - (ii) the LHIN may require the HSP to pay an amount equal to the unused Interest Income to the Ministry of Finance.

4.7 Rebates, Credits and Refunds. The HSP:

- (a) acknowledges that rebates, credits and refunds it anticipates receiving from the use of the Funding have been incorporated in its Budget,
- (b) agrees that it will advise the LHIN if it receives any unanticipated rebates, credits and refunds from the use of the Funding, or from the use of funding received from either the LHIN or the MOHLTC in years prior to this Agreement that was not recorded in the year of the related expenditure;
- (c) agrees that all rebates, credits and refunds referred to in (b) will be considered Funding in the year that the rebates are received, regardless of the year to which the rebate relates.

4.8 Procurement of Goods and Services.

- (a) If the HSP is subject to the procurement provisions of the BPSAA, the HSP will abide by all directives and guidelines issued by the Management Board of Cabinet that are applicable to the HSP pursuant to the BPSAA.
- (b) If the HSP is not subject to the procurement provisions of the BPSAA, the HSP will have a procurement policy in place that requires the acquisition of supplies, equipment or services-valued at over \$25,000 through a competitive process that ensures the best value for funds expended. If the HSP acquires supplies, equipment or services with the Funding, it will do so through a process that is consistent with this policy.
- 4.9 Disposition. The HSP will not, without the LHIN's prior written consent, sell, lease or otherwise dispose of any assets purchased with Funding, the cost of which exceeded \$25,000 at the time of purchase.

ARTICLE 5.0 - REPAYMENT AND RECOVERY OF FUNDING

5.1 Repayment and Recovery.

- (a) At the End of a Funding Year. If, in any Funding Year, the HSP has not spent all of the Funding, the LHIN will require the repayment of the unspent Funding.
- (b) On Termination or Expiration of this Agreement. Upon termination or expiry of this Agreement, the LHIN will require the repayment of any Funding remaining in the possession or under the control of the HSP and the payment of an amount equal to any Funding the HSP used for purposes not permitted by this Agreement.
- (c) On Reconciliation and Settlement. If the year-end reconciliation and settlement process demonstrates that the HSP received Funding in excess of its confirmed funds, the LHIN will require the repayment of the excess Funding.
- (d) As a Result of Performance Management or System Planning. If Services are adjusted, as a result of the performance management or system planning processes, the LHIN may adjust the Funding to be paid under Schedule B, require the repayment of excess Funding and/or adjust the amount of any future funding installments accordingly.

- (e) In the Event of Forecasted Surpluses. If the HSP is forecasting a surplus, the LHIN may adjust the amount of Funding to be paid under Schedule B, require the repayment of excess Funding and/or adjust the amount of any future funding installments accordingly.
- (f) On the Request of the LHIN. The HSP will, at the request of the LHIN, repay the whole or any part of the Funding, or an amount equal thereto if the HSP:
 - (i) has provided false information to the LHIN knowing it to be false;
 - (ii) breaches a term or condition of this Agreement and does not, within 30 Days after receiving Notice from the Li-IIN, take reasonable steps to remedy the breach; or
 - (iii) breaches any Applicable Law that directly relates to the provision of, or ensuring the provision of, the Services.
- (g) Subsections 5.1(c) and (d) do not apply to Funding already expended properly in accordance with this Agreement. The LHIN will, at its sole discretion, and without liability or penalty, determine whether the Funding has been expended properly in accordance with this Agreement.
- 5.2 Provision for the Recovery of Funding. The HSP will make reasonable and prudent provision for the recovery by the LHIN of any Funding for which the conditions of Funding set out in section 4.5 are not met and will hold this Funding in accordance with the provisions of section 4.6 until such time as reconciliation and settlement has occurred with the LHIN. Interest earned on Funding will be reported and recovered in accordance with section 4.6.
- 5.3 Settlement and Recovery of Funding for Prior Years.
 - (a) The HSP acknowledges that settlement and recovery of Funding can occur up to seven years after the provision of Funding.
 - (b) Recognizing the transition of responsibilities from the MOHLTC to the LHIN, the HSP agrees that if the Parties are directed in writing to do so by the MOHLTC, the LHIN will settle and recover funding provided by the MOHLTC to the HSP prior to the transition of the Funding for the Services to the LHIN, provided that such settlement and recovery occurs within seven years of the provision of the funding by the MOHLTC. All such settlements and recoveries will be subject to the terms applicable to the original provision of funding.

5.4 Debt Due.

(a) If the LHIN requires the re-payment by the HSP of any Funding, the amount required will be deemed to be a debt owing to the Crown by the HSP. The LHIN may adjust future funding instalments to recover the amounts owed or may, at its discretion direct the HSP to pay the amount owing to the Crown and the HSP shall comply immediately with any such direction.

- (b) All amounts repayable to the Crown will be paid by cheque payable to the "Ontario Minister of Finance" and mailed or delivered to the LHIN at the address provided in section 13.1.
- 5.5 Interest Rate. The LHIN may charge the HSP interest on any amount owing by the HSP at the then current interest rate charged by the Province of Ontario on accounts receivable.

ARTICLE 6.0 - PLANNING AND INTEGRATION

6.1 Planning for Future Years.

- (a) Advance Notice. The LHIN will give at least 60 Days' Notice to the HSP of the date by which a Community Accountability Planning Submission ("CAPS"), approved by the HSP's governing body, must be submitted to the LHIN.
- (b) Multi-Year Planning. The CAPS will be in a form acceptable to the LHIN and may be required to incorporate: (i) prudent multi-year financial forecasts; (ii) plans for the achievement of performance targets; and (iii) realistic risk management strategies. It will be aligned with the LHIN's then current Integrated Health-Service Plan and will reflect local LHIN priorities and initiatives. If the LHIN has provided multi-year planning targets for the HSP, the CAPS will reflect the planning targets.
- (c) Multi-Year Planning Targets. Schedule B may reflect an allocation for the first Funding Year of this Agreement as well as planning targets for up to two additional years, consistent with the term of this Agreement. In such an event,
 - (i) the HSP acknowledges that if it is provided with planning targets, these targets are: (A) targets only; (B) provided solely for the purposes of planning;
 (C) are subject to confirmation; and (D) may be changed at the discretion of the LHIN in consultation with the HSP. The HSP will proactively manage the risks associated with multi-year planning and the potential changes to the planning targets; and
 - (ii) the LHIN agrees that it will communicate any changes to the planning targets as soon as reasonably possible.
- (d) Service Accountability Agreements. The HSP acknowledges that if the LHIN and the HSP enter into negotiations for a subsequent service accountability agreement, subsequent funding may be interrupted if the next service accountability agreement is not executed on or before the expiration date of this Agreement.

6.2 Community Engagement and Integration Activities.

(a) Community Engagement. The HSP will engage the community of diverse persons and entities in the area where it provides health services when setting priorities for the delivery of health services and when developing plans for submission to the LHIN including but not limited to CAPS and integration proposals.

- (b) Integration. The HSP will, separately and in conjunction with the LHIN and other health service providers, identify opportunities to integrate the services of the local health system to provide appropriate, co-coordinated, effective and efficient services.
- (c) Reporting. The HSP will report on its community engagement and integration activities as requested by the LHIN and in any event, in its year-end report to the LHIN.
- 6.3 Planning and Integration Activity Pre-proposals.
 - (a) General. A pre-proposal process has been developed to: (i) reduce the costs incurred by an HSP when proposing operational or service changes; (ii) assist the HSP to carry out its statutory obligations; and (iii) enable an effective and efficient response by the LHIN. Subject to specific direction from the LHIN, this pre-proposal process will be used in the following instances:
 - the HSP is considering an integration or an integration of services, as defined in the Act between the HSP and another person or entity;
 - (ii) the HSP is proposing to reduce, stop, start, expand or transfer the location of Services, which for certainty includes: the transfer of Services from the HSP to another person or entity whether within or outside of the LHIN; and the relocation or transfer of Services from one of the HSP's sites to another of the HSP's sites whether within or outside of the LHIN;
 - (iii) to identify opportunities to integrate the services of the local health system, other than those identified in (i) or (ii) above; or
 - (iv) if requested by the LHIN.
 - (b) LHIN Evaluation of the Pre-proposal. Use of the pre-proposal process is not formal Notice of a proposed integration under section 27 of the Act. LHIN consent to develop the project concept outlined in a pre-proposal does not constitute approval to proceed with the project. Nor does LHIN consent to develop a project concept presume the issuance of a favourable decision, should such a decision be required by sections 25 or 27 of the Act. Following the LHIN's review and evaluation, the HSP may be invited to submit a detailed proposal and a business plan for further analysis. Guidelines for the development of a detailed proposal and business case will be provided by the LHIN.
- 6.4 Proposing Integration Activities in the Planning Submission. No integration activity described in section 6.3 may be proposed in a CAPS unless the LHIN has consented, in writing, to its inclusion pursuant to the process set out in subsection 6.3(b).
- 6.5 **Definitions.** In this section 6.0, the terms "integrate", "integration" and "services" have the same meanings attributed to them in subsection 2(1) and section 23 respectively of the Act, as it and they may be amended from time to time.

[&]quot;service" includes,

(a) a service or program that is provided directly to people,

(b) a service or program, other than a service or program described in clause (a), that supports a service or program described in that clause, or

(c) a function that supports the operations of a person or entity that provides a service or program described in clause (a) or (b).

"integrate" includes,

- to co-ordinate services and interactions between different persons and entities.
- (b) to partner with another person or entity in providing services or in operating,
- (c) to transfer, merge or amalgamate services, operations, persons or entities,
- (d) to start or cease providing services,
- (e) to cease to operate or to dissolve or wind up the operations of a person or entity.

and "integration" has a similar meaning.

ARTICLE 7.0 - PERFORMANCE

7.1 Performance. The Parties will strive to achieve on-going performance improvement. They will address performance improvement in a proactive, collaborative and responsive manner.

7.2 Performance Factors.

- (a) Each Party will notify the other Party of the existence of a Performance Factor, as soon as reasonably possible after the Party becomes aware of the Performance Factor. The Notice will:
 - ·· (i) ···· describe the Performance Factor and its actual or anticipated impact; ···
 - (ii) include a description of any action the Party is undertaking, or plans to undertake, to remedy or mitigate the Performance Factor;
 - (iii) indicate whether the Party is requesting a meeting to discuss the Performance Factor; and
 - (iv) address any other issue or matter the Party wishes to raise with the other Party.
- (b) The recipient Party will provide a written acknowledgment of receipt of the Notice within seven Days of the date on which the Notice was received ("Date of the Notice").
- (c) Where a meeting has been requested under paragraph 7.2(a)(iii), the Parties agree to meet and discuss the Performance Factors within 14 Days of the Date of the Notice, in accordance with the provisions of section 7.3.

- 7.3 Performance Meetings. During a meeting on performance, the Parties will:
 - discuss the causes of a Performance Factor;
 - (b) discuss the impact of a Performance Factor on the local health system and the risk resulting from non-performance; and
 - (c) determine the steps to be taken to remedy or mitigate the impact of the Performance Factor (the "Performance Improvement Process").

7.4 The Performance Improvement Process.

- (a) The Performance Improvement Process will focus on the risks of nonperformance and problem-solving. It may include one or more of the following actions:
 - a requirement that the HSP develop and implement an improvement plan that is acceptable to the LHIN;
 - (ii) the conduct of a Review:
 - (iii) a revision and amendment of the HSP's obligations; and/or
 - (iv) an in-year, or year-end, adjustment to the Funding.

among other possible means of responding to the Performance Factor or Improving performance.

(b) Any performance improvement process begun under a prior service accountability agreement that was not completed under the prior agreement will continue under this Agreement. Any performance improvement required by the LHIN under a prior service accountability agreement will be deemed to be a requirement of this Agreement until fulfilled or waived by the LHIN.

ARTICLE 8.0 - REPORTING, ACCOUNTING AND REVIEW

8.1 Reporting.

- (a) Generally. The LHIN's ability to enable its local health system to provide appropriate, co-ordinated, effective and efficient health services as contemplated by the Act, is heavily dependent on the timely collection and analysis of accurate information. The HSP acknowledges that the timely provision of accurate information related to the HSP, and its performance of its obligations under this Agreement, is under the HSP's control.
- (b) Specific Obligations. The HSP:
 - (i) will provide to the LHIN, or to such other entity as the LHIN may direct, in the form and within the time specified by the LHIN, the Reports, other than personal health information as defined in subsection 31(5) of the CFMA, that (i) the LHIN requires for the purposes of exercising its powers and duties under this Agreement, the Act or for the purposes that are prescribed under the Act, or (ii) may be requested under the CFMA;
 - (ii) will fulfil the specific reporting requirements set out in Schedule C;

- (iii) will ensure that every Report is complete, accurate, signed on behalf of the HSP by an authorized signing officer where required and provided in a timely manner and in a form satisfactory to the LHIN; and
- (iv) agrees that every Report submitted to the LHIN by or on behalf of the HSP, will be deemed to have been authorized by the HSP for submission.
- (c) French Language Services. If the HSP is required to provide services to the public in French under the provisions of the will be required to submit a French language services report to the LHIN. If the HSP is not required to provide services to the public in French under the provisions of the

outlines how the HSP addresses the needs of its local Francophone community.

- (d) Declaration of Compliance. Within 90 days of the HSP's fiscal year-end, the Board will issue a Compliance Declaration declaring that the HSP has complied with the terms of this Agreement. The form of the declaration is set out in Schedule G and may be amended by the LHIN from time to time throughout the term of this Agreement.
- (e) Financial Reductions. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, and at the discretion of the LHIN, the HSP may be subject to a financial reduction in any of the following circumstances:
 - its CAPS is received after the due date;
 - (ii) its CAPS is incomplete;
 - (iii) the quarterly performance reports are not provided when due; or
 - (iv) financial or clinical data requirements are late, incomplete or inaccurate,

where the errors or delay were not as a result of LHIN actions or inaction. If assessed, the financial reduction will be as follows:

- (v) if received within seven days after the due date, incomplete or inaccurate, the financial penalty will be the greater of: (i) a reduction of 0:02 percent (0.02%) of the Funding; or (ii) two hundred and fifty dollars (\$250.00); and
- (vi) for every full or partial week of non-compliance thereafter, the rate will be one half of the initial reduction.

8.2 Reviews.

(a) During the term of this Agreement and for seven years after the term of this Agreement, the HSP agrees that the LHIN or its authorized representatives may conduct a Review of the HSP to confirm the HSP's fulfillment of its obligations under this Agreement. For these purposes, the LHIN or its authorized representatives may, upon 24 hours' Notice to the HSP and during normal business hours enter upon the HSP's premises to:

- (i) inspect and copy any financial records, invoices and other financerelated documents, other than personal health information as defined in subsection 31(5) of the CFMA, in the possession or under the control of the HSP which relate to the Funding or otherwise to the Services; and
- (ii) inspect and copy non-financial records, other than personal health information as defined in subsection 31(5) of the CFMA, in the possession or under the control of the HSP which relate to the Funding, the Services or otherwise to the performance of the HSP under this Agreement.
- (b) The cost of any Review will be borne by the HSP if the Review: (i) was made necessary because the HSP did not comply with a requirement under the Act or this Agreement; or (ii) indicates that the HSP has not fulfilled its obligations under this Agreement, including its obligations under Applicable Law and Applicable Policy.
- (c) To assist in respect of the rights set out in (a) above, the HSP shall disclose any information requested by the LHIN or its authorized representatives, and shall do so in a form requested by the LHIN or its authorized representatives.
- (d) The HSP may not commence a proceeding for damages or otherwise against any person with respect to any act done or omitted to be done, any conclusion reached or report submitted that is done in good faith in respect of a Review.
- (e) HSP's obligations under this section 8.2 will survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement.

8.3 Document Retention and Record Maintenance. The HSP will

- (a) retain all records (as that term is defined in FIPPA) related to the HSP's performance of its obligations under this Agreement for seven years after the termination or expiration of the term of this Agreement. The HSP's obligations under this paragraph will survive any termination or expiry of this Agreement;
- (b) keep all financial records, invoices and other finance-related documents relating to the Funding or otherwise to the Services in a manner consistent with either generally accepted accounting principles or international financial reporting standards as advised by the HSP's auditor; and

. ... ------ .. .

(c) keep all non-financial documents and records relating to the Funding or otherwise to the Services in a manner consistent with all Applicable Law.

8.4 Disclosure of Information.

(a) FIPPA. The HSP acknowledges that the LHIN is bound by FIPPA and that any information provided to the LHIN in connection with this Agreement may be subject to disclosure in accordance with FIPPA.

- (b) Confidential Information. The Parties will treat Confidential Information as confidential and will not disclose Confidential Information except with the consent of the disclosing Party or as permitted or required under FIPPA or the Personal Health Information Protection Act, 2004, the Act, court order, subpoena or other Applicable Law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the LHIN may disclose information that it collects under this Agreement in accordance with the Act and the CFMA.
- 8.5 Transparency. The HSP will post a copy of this Agreement and each Compliance Declaration submitted to the LHIN during the term of this Agreement in a conspicuous and easily accessible public place at its sites of operations to which this Agreement applies and on its public website, if the HSP operates a public website.
- 8.6 Auditor General. For greater certainty the LHIN's rights under this article are in addition to any rights provided to the Auditor General under the Auditor General Act (Ontario).

ARTICLE 9.0 - ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF LHIN SUPPORT

- 9.1 Publication. For the purposes of this Article 9, the term "publication" means any material on or concerning the Services that the HSP makes available to the public, regardless of whether the material is provided electronically or in hard copy. Examples include a web-site, an advertisement, a brochure, promotional documents and a report. Materials that are prepared by the HSP in order to fulfil its reporting obligations under this Agreement are not included in the term "publication".
- 9.2 Acknowledgment of Funding Support.
 - (a) The HSP agrees all publications will include:
 - (i) an acknowledgment of the Funding provided by the LHIN and the Government of Ontario. Prior to including an acknowledgement in any publication, the HSP will obtain the LHIN's approval of the form of acknowledgement. The LHIN may, at its discretion, decide that an acknowledgement is not necessary; and
 - (ii) a statement indicating that the views expressed in the publication are the views
 of the HSP and do not necessarily reflect those of the LHIN or the Government
 of Ontario.
 - (b) The HSP shall not use any insignia or logo of Her Majesty the Queen in right of Ontario, including those of the LHIN, unless it has received the prior written permission of the LHIN to do so.

ARTICLE 10.0 - REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS

- 10.1 General The HSP represents, warrants and covenants that:
 - (a) it is, and will continue for the term of this Agreement to be, a validly existing legal entity with full power to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement;

- (b) it has the experience and expertise necessary to carry out the Services;
- (c) it holds all permits, licences, consents, intellectual property rights and authorities necessary to perform its obligations under this Agreement;
- (d) all information (including information relating to any eligibility requirements for Funding) that the HSP provided to the LHIN in support of its request for Funding was true and complete at the time the HSP provided it, and will, subject to the provision of Notice otherwise, continue to be true and complete for the term of this Agreement; and
- (e) it does, and will continue for the term of this Agreement to, operate in compliance with all Applicable Law and Applicable Policy, including observing where applicable, the requirements of the Corporations Act or successor legislation and the HSP's by-laws in respect of, but not limited to, the holding of board meetings, the requirements of quorum for decision-making, the maintenance of minutes for all board and committee meetings and the holding of members meetings.
- 10.2 Execution of Agreement. The HSP represents and warrants that:
 - it has the full power and authority to enter into this Agreement; and
 - (b) it has taken all necessary actions to authorize the execution of this Agreement.

10.3 Governance.

- (a) The HSP represents, warrants and covenants that it has established, and will maintain for the period during which this Agreement is in effect, policies and procedures;
 - that set out a code of conduct for, and that identify the ethical responsibilities for all persons at all levels of the HSP's organization;
 - (ii) to ensure the ongoing effective functioning of the HSP;
 - (iii) for effective and appropriate decision-making;
 - (iv) for effective and prudent risk-management, including the identification and management of potential, actual and perceived conflicts of interest;
 - (v) for the prudent and effective management of the Funding;
 - (vi) to monitor and ensure the accurate and timely fulfillment of the HSP's obligations under this Agreement and compliance with the Act;
 - (vii) to enable the preparation, approval and delivery of all Reports;
 - (viii) to address complaints about the provision of Services, the management or governance of the HSP; and
 - (ix) to deal with such other matters as the HSP considers necessary to ensure that the HSP carries out its obligations under this Agreement.

- (b) The HSP represents and warrants that:
 - the HSP has, or will have within 60 Days of the execution of this Agreement, a Performance Agreement with its CEO that ties the CEO's compensation plan to the CEO's performance;
 - (ii) it will take all reasonable care to ensure that its CEO complies with the Performance Agreement;
 - (iii) It will enforce the HSP's rights under the Performance Agreement; and
 - (iv) any compensation award provided to the CEO during the term of this Agreement will be pursuant to an evaluation of the CEO's performance under the Performance Agreement and the CEO's achievement of performance goals and performance improvement targets and in compliance with Applicable Law.

"compensation award", for the purposes of Section 10.3(b)(iv) above, means all forms of payment, benefits and perquisites paid or provided, directly or indirectly, to or for the benefit of a CEO who performs duties and functions that entitle him or her to be paid.

- 10.4 Funding, Services and Reporting. The HSP represents, warrants and covenants that:
 - (a) the Funding is, and will be continued to be, used only to provide the Services in accordance with the terms of this Agreement;
 - (b) the Services are and will continue to be provided:
 - by persons with the expertise, professional qualifications, licensing and skills necessary to complete their respective tasks; and
 - (ii) in compliance with Applicable Law and Applicable Policy;
 - (c) every Report is accurate and in full compliance with the provisions of this Agreement, including any particular requirements applicable to the Report and any material change to a Report will be communicated to the LHIN immediately.
- 10.5 Supporting Documentation. Upon request, the HSP will provide the LHIN with proof of the matters referred to in this Article.

ARTICLE 11.0 - LIMITATION OF LIABILITY, INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

11.1 Limitation of Liability. The Indemnified Parties will not be liable to the HSP or any of the HSP's Personnel and Volunteers for costs, losses, claims, liabilities and damages howsoever caused arising out of or in any way related to the Services or otherwise in connection with this Agreement, unless caused by the negligence or wilful act of any of the Indemnified Parties.

- 11.2 Ibid. For greater certainty and without limiting section 11.1, the LHIN is not liable for how the HSP and the HSP's Personnel and Volunteers carry out the Services and is therefore not responsible to the HSP for such Services. Moreover, the LHIN is not contracting with or employing any HSP's Personnel and Volunteers to carry out the terms of this Agreement. As such, it is not liable for contracting with, employing or terminating a contract with or the employment of any HSP's Personnel and Volunteers required to carry out this Agreement, nor for the withholding, collection or payment of any taxes, premiums, contributions or any other remittances due to government for the HSP's Personnel and Volunteers required by the HSP to carry out this Agreement.
- Indemnification. The HSP hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the indemnified Parties from and against any and all liability, loss, costs, damages and expenses (including legal, expert and consultant costs), causes of action, actions, claims, demands, lawsuits or other proceedings (collectively, the "Claims"), by whomever made, sustained, brought or prosecuted (including for third party bodily injury (including death), personal injury and property damage), in any way based upon, occasioned by or attributable to anything done or omitted to be done by the HSP or the HSP's Personnel and Volunteers, in the course of the performance of the HSP's obligations under, or otherwise in connection with, this Agreement, unless caused by the negligence or wilful misconduct of any Indemnified Parties.

11.4 Insurance,

- (a) Generally. The HSP shall protect itself from and against all claims that might arise from anything done or omitted to be done by the HSP and the HSP's Personnel and Volunteers under this Agreement and more specifically all claims that might arise from anything done or omitted to be done under this Agreement where bodily injury (including personal injury), death or property damage, including loss of use of property is caused.
- (b) Required Insurance. The HSP will put into effect and maintain, with insurers having a secure A.M. Best rating of 8+ or greater, or the equivalent, all necessary and appropriate insurance that a prudent person in the business of the HSP would maintain, including, but not limited to, the following at its own expense:
- Commercial General Liability Insurance, for third party bodily injury, personal
 injury and property damage to an inclusive limit of not less than two million
 dollars per occurrence and not less than two million dollars products and
 completed operations aggregate. The policy will include the following clauses:
 - The Indemnified Parties as additional insureds;
 - (ii) Contractual Liability;
 - (iii) Cross-Liability;
 - (iv) Products and Completed Operations Liability;
 - (V) Employers Liability and Voluntary Compensation unless the HSP compiles with the Section below entitled "Proof of WSIA Coverage";
 - (vi) Tenants Legal Liability; (
 - (vii) Non-Owned automobile coverage with blanket contractual coverage for hired automobiles; and,
 - (viii) A 30-Day written notice of cancellation, termination or material change.

- Proof of WSIA Coverage. The HSP will provide the LHIN with a valid Workplace Safety and Insurance Act, 1997 (WSIA) Clearance Certificate and any renewal replacements, and will pay all amounts required to be paid to maintain a valid WSIA Clearance Certificate throughout the term of this Agreement.
- 3. All Risk Property Insurance on property of every description, for the term, providing coverage to a limit of not less than the full replacement cost, including earthquake and flood. All reasonable deductibles and/or self-insured retentions are the responsibility of the HSP.
- Comprehensive Crime insurance, Disappearance, Destruction and Dishonest coverage.
- Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance insuring liability for errors and omissions in the provision of any professional services as part of the Services or failure to perform any such professional services, in the amount of not less than two million dollars per claim and in the annual aggregate.
- (c) Certificates of Insurance. The HSP will provide the LHIN with proof of the insurance required by this Agreement in the form of a valid certificate of insurance that references this Agreement and confirms the required coverage, on or before the commencement of this Agreement, and renewal replacements on or before the expiry of any such insurance. Upon the request of the LHIN, a copy of each insurance policy shall be made available to it. The HSP shall ensure that each of its subcontractors obtains all the necessary and appropriate insurance that a prudent person in the business of the subcontractor would maintain and that the Indemnified Parties are named as additional insureds with respect to any liability arising in the course of performance of the subcontractor's obligations under the subcontract.

ARTICLE 12.0 - TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

12.1 Termination by the LHIN.

- (a) Without Cause. The LHIN may terminate this Agreement at any time, for any reason, upon giving at least 60 Days' Notice to the HSP.
- (b) Where No Appropriation. If, as provided for in section 4.3, the LHIN does not receive the necessary funding from the MOHLTC, the LHIN may terminate this Agreement immediately by giving Notice to the HSP.
- (c) For Cause. The LHIN may terminate this Agreement immediately upon giving Notice to the HSP if:
 - (i) in the opinion of the LHIN:
 - A. the HSP has knowingly provided false or misleading information regarding its funding request or in any other communication with the LHIN;
 - B. the HSP breaches any material provision of this Agreement;

- the HSP is unable to provide or has discontinued the Services;
 or
- it is not reasonable for the HSP to continue to provide the Services;
- (ii) the nature of the HSP's business, or its corporate status, changes so that it no longer meets the applicable eligibility requirements of the program under which the LHIN provides the Funding;
- (iii) the HSP makes an assignment, proposal, compromise, or arrangement for the benefit of creditors, or is petitioned into bankruptcy, or files for the appointment of a receiver; or
- (iv) the HSP ceases to carry on business.
- (d) Material Breach. A breach of a material provision of this Agreement includes, but is not limited to:
 - (i) misuse of Funding;
 - (ii) a failure or inability to provide the Services as set out in the Service Plan;
 - (iii) a failure to provide the Compliance Declaration;
 - (iv) a failure to implement, or follow, a Performance Agreement, Performance Improvement Process or a Transition Plan;
 - (v) a failure to respond to LHIN requests in a timely manner;
 - (vi) a failure to: A) advise the LHIN of actual, potential or perceived Conflict of Interest; or B) comply with any requirements prescribed by the LHIN to resolve a Conflict of Interest; and
 - (vii) a Conflict of Interest that cannot be resolved.
- (e) Fransition Plan. In the event of termination by the LHIN pursuant to this subsection, the LHIN and the HSP will develop a transition plan, acceptable to the LHIN that indicates how the needs of the HSP's clients will be met following the termination and how the transition of the clients to new service providers will be effected in a timely manner ("Transition Plan"). The HSP agrees that it will take all actions, and provide all information, required by the LHIN to facilitate the transition of the HSP's clients.

12.2 Termination by the HSP.

- (a) The HSP may terminate this Agreement at any time, for any reason, upon giving six months' Notice (or such shorter period as may be agreed by the HSP and the LHIN) to the LHIN provided that the Notice is accompanied by:
 - satisfactory evidence that the HSP has taken all necessary actions to authorize the termination of this Agreement; and
 - (ii) a Transition Plan, acceptable to the LHIN, that indicates how the needs of the HSP's clients will be met following the termination and how the transition of the clients to new service providers will be effected within the six month Notice period.

(b) In the event that the HSP fails to provide an acceptable Transition Plan, the LHIN may reduce Funding payable to the HSP prior to termination of this Agreement to compensate the LHIN for transition costs.

12.3 Opportunity to Remedy.

- (a) Opportunity to Remedy. If the LHIN considers that it is appropriate to allow the HSP an opportunity to remedy a breach of this Agreement, the LHIN may give the HSP an opportunity to remedy the breach by giving the HSP Notice of the particulars of the breach and of the period of time within which the HSP is required to remedy the breach. The Notice will also advise the HSP that the LHIN will terminate this Agreement:
 - (i) at the end of the Notice period provided for in the Notice if the HSP fails to remedy the breach within the time specified in the Notice; or prior to the end of the Notice period of the HSP cannot completely remedy the breach within that time or such further period of time as the LHIN considers reasonable, or the HSP is not proceeding to remedy the breach in a way that is satisfactory to the LHIN.
- (b) Fallure to Remedy. If the LHIN has provided the HSP with an opportunity to remedy the breach, and:
 - the HSP does not remedy the breach within the time period specified in the Notice;
 - (ii) it becomes apparent to the LHIN that the HSP cannot completely remedy the breach within the time specified in the Notice or such further period of time as the LHIN considers reasonable; or
 - the HSP is not proceeding to remedy the breach in a way that is satisfactory to the LHIN,

then the LHIN may immediately terminate this Agreement by giving Notice of termination to the HSP.

12.4 Consequences of Termination.

- (a) If this Agreement is terminated pursuant to this Article, the LHIN may:
 - (i) cancel all further Funding instalments;
 - (ii) demand the repayment of any Funding remaining in the possession or under the control of the HSP;
 - (iii) determine the HSP's reasonable costs to wind down the Services; and
 - (iv) permit the HSP to offset the costs determined pursuant to subsection (iii), against the amount owing pursuant to subsection (ii).

- Effective Date. Termination under this Article will take effect as set out in the Notice. 12.5
- Corrective Action. Despite its right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this 12.6 Article, the LHIN may choose not to terminate this Agreement and may take whatever corrective action it considers necessary and appropriate, including suspending Funding for such period as the LHIN determines, to ensure the successful completion of the Services in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 13.0 - NOTICE

13.1 Notice. A Notice will be in writing; delivered personally, by pre-paid courier, by facsimile with confirmation of receipt, or by any form of mail where evidence of receipt is provided by the post office. A Notice may not be sent by e-mail. A Notice will be addressed to the other Party as provided below or as either Party will later designate to the other in writing:

To the LHIN:

To the HSP:

North West LHIN 201 - 975 Alloy Drive Thunder Bay, ON P7B 5Z8

Canadian Mental Health Association, Thunder Bay 200 Van Norman Street

Thunder Bay, ON P7A 4B8

Attn: Chief Executive Officer Fax:

(807) 684-9533

Telephone: (807) 684-9425 Attn: Chief Executive Officer

Fax: (807) 345-4458

Telephone: (807) 345-5564

Notices Effective From. A Notice will be effective at the time the delivery is made. 13.2

ARTICLE 14.0 - ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

- Interpretation. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency in any provision of this 14.1 Agreement, the main body of this Agreement will prevail over the Schedules, unless otherwise provided in the Schedules.
- Invalidity or Unenforceability of Any Provision. The invalidity or unenforceability of 14.2 any provision of this Agreement will not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement and any invalid or unenforceable provision will be deemed to be severed.
- Terms and Conditions on Any Consent. Any consent or approval that the LHIN may 14.3 grant under this Agreement is subject to such terms and conditions as the LHIN may reasonably require.
- Walver. A Party may only rely on a waiver of the Party's failure to comply with any term of this Agreement If the other Party has provided a written and signed Notice of walver. Any waiver must refer to a specific failure to comply and will not have the effect of waiving any subsequent failures to comply.

- 14.5 Parties Independent. The Parties are and will at all times remain independent of each other and are not and will not represent themselves to be the agent, joint venturer, partner or employee of the other. No representations will be made or acts taken by either Party which could establish or imply any apparent relationship of agency, joint venture, partnership or employment and neither Party will be bound in any manner whatsoever by any agreements, warranties or representations made by the other Party to any other person or entity, nor with respect to any other action of the other Party.
- 14.6 LHIN is an Agent of the Crown. The Parties acknowledge that the LHIN is an agent of the Crown and may only act as an agent of the Crown in accordance with the provisions of the Act. Notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement, any express or implied reference to the LHIN providing an indemnity or any other form of indebtedness or contingent liability that would directly or indirectly increase the indebtedness or contingent liabilities of the LHIN or of Ontario, whether at the time of execution of this Agreement or at any time during the term of this Agreement, will be void and of no legal effect.
- 14.7 Express Rights and Remedies Not Limited. The express rights and remedies of the LHIN are in addition to and will not limit any other rights and remedies available to the LHIN at law or in equity. For further certainty, the LHIN has not waived any provision of any applicable statute, including the Act and the CFMA, nor the right to exercise its rights under these statutes at any time.
- 14.8 No Assignment. The HSP will not assign this Agreement or the Funding in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, without the prior written consent of the LHIN. No assignment or subcontract shall relieve the HSP from its obligations under this Agreement or impose any liability upon the LHIN to any assignee or subcontractor. The LHIN may assign this Agreement or any of its rights and obligations under this Agreement to any one or more of the LHINs or to the MOHLTC.
- 14.9 Governing Law. This Agreement and the rights, obligations and relations of the Parties hereto will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Province of Ontario and the federal laws of Canada applicable therein. Any litigation arising in connection with this Agreement will be conducted in Ontario unless the Parties agree in writing otherwise.
- 14.10 Survival. The provisions in Articles 1.0, 2.0, 4.3, 5.0, 8.0, 10.5, 11.0, 13.0, 14.0 and 15.0 will continue in full force and effect for a period of seven years from the date of expiry or termination of this Agreement.
- 14.11 Further Assurances. The Parties agree to do or cause to be done all acts or things necessary to implement and carry into effect this Agreement to its full extent.
- 14.12 Amendment of Agreement. This Agreement may only be amended by a written agreement duly executed by the Parties.
- 14.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original, but all of which together will constitute one and the same instrument.

ARTICLE 15.0 - ENTIRE AGREEMENT

15.1 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter contained in this Agreement and supersedes all prior oral or written representations and agreements.

The Parties have executed this Agreement on the dates set out below.

NORTH WEST LOCAL HEALTH INTEGRATION NETWORK	N	lorti	H WEST	LOCAL	HEALTH	INTEGR/	MOITA	METWORK
---	---	-------	--------	-------	--------	---------	-------	---------

La Machiner Joy Warkentin, Chair	agn 10/14
And by: Laura Kokocinski, Chief Executive Officer	april 14/14
CANADIAN MENTAL HEALTH ASSOCIATION, THUI	NDER BAY
By: ## Company Service of the HSP Linda Stewardson, President I have authority to bind the HSP	March 26,2014
And by: Sharon Pitawanakwat, Acting Chief Executive Officer	March 26,2014

I have authority to bind the HSP

LIST OF SCHEDULES

Schedule A - Description of Services

- Schedule A1 Detailed Description of Services
- Schedule A2 Population and Geography Narratives

Schedule B - Service Plan

Schedule B1 – Budget 2014/17

Schedule C - Reports

4. Schedule C - Reports

Schedule D - Directives, Guidelines and Policies

Schedule D – Directives, Guidelines and Policies

Schedule E - Performance

- 6. Schedule E1 Core Indicators All Sectors
- Schedule E2a Core Indicators All Sectors (Service Activity)
- Schedule E2b CHC Specific Indicators (if applicable to the organization)
- Schedule E2c MH&A Specific Indicators (if applicable to the organization)
- 10. Schedule E2d CSS Specific Indicators (if applicable to the organization)
- 11. Schedule E2e CCAC Specific Indicators (if applicable to the organization)
- 12. Schedule E3 LHIN Local Indicators
- 13. Schedule E4a Local Performance Obligations NW LHIN Wide
- 14. Schedule E4b Local Performance Obligations HSP Specific

Schedule F - Project Funding Agreement Template

15. Schedule F - Project Funding Agreement Template

Schedule G - Compliance

16. Schedule G - Declaration of Compliance

Scheidike A1: Jetailed Description of Services

Detailed Description of Services Narrative

Healthcare Service Provider;

Canadian Mental Health Association, Thunder Bay

Bi Bigan Rabij		Catchment Arps Served	-:
BA 13-pp Ala Zaj Far	Within Utilik	Other LHM Areas	ï
district La Esylvi Sisse fin La Esylvi La Esyl	SLL Berthen Bill Cop of Facilities Eng	ME M	Ksy
			7
<u> </u>			ſ
	×		×
×	×		×
72 \$ 10 75 SB MM Divagalon and Court Support	X		×
72.5 15 78 Orlais Intervention - Memail Heach			× F
Crigis Support Bods	×		×
			×
			Ť
			Ť
			ij

Population and Geography Narratives

Healthcare Service Provider:

Canadián Mental Health Association, Thunder Bay

Client Population Client Popula
connected by the tractional models are available in a second seco
The parameter of all sandace is to high invitable achieve addount achieve addounts in ordar to told a lad and satisfying life.
GGOSTAPHY Servet Chief Thurson Bay Branch of samples prodominantly evallable to inclinitiate residing in the day. Three service also are located in the day, Mest convices are resident to have a service and evaluate the hand of the day. Three services are resident to have a service and evaluate the hand of the day. Three services are resident to have a service and evaluate the hand of the day. Three services are resident to have a service and evaluate the hand of the day. Three services are available to inclinitiate the hand of the day. Three services are available to inclinitiate the hand of the day. Three services are available to inclinitiate the hand of the day. Three services are available to inclinitiate the hand of the day. Three services are available to inclinitiate the hand of the day. Three services are available to inclinitiate the hand of the day. Three services are available to inclinitiate the services are available to inclinitiate the services are available to the se
gwepulous are as follows: Casta Rasporter Pababkone Line - avoileble to individuab in the city and diotrict of Thunder Bay and cervice je evollable 2477 265 days - control of the city and diotrict of Thunder Bay and cervice je evollable control of the city and diotrict of Thunder Bay and cervice je evollable control of the city and diotrict of Thunder Bay and cervice je evollable control of the city and diotrict of Thunder Bay and cervice je evollable control of the city and diotrict of Thunder Bay and cervice je evollable control of the city and diotrict of the city and diotric of t
First Place Clinic and Recourse Conter - available to individuate in the Northword Little experiment area bothword, the nouts of actor and a second and second Conter - available to individuate in the Northword Little experiment area bothword.

Summary of Revenue & Expenses

Schedule 81. Budget 2014/17

Healthcare Service Provider:

Canadian Montal Health Association, Thunder Bay

					1
LHIN Program . Revenue & Expenses	M. med	Account: Financial (F) Reference OHRS VERSION 3.0	2014/16 Approved Budget	2015/18 Approyed Budget	2016/17 Approved Biologi
REVENUE	3.00				
LHIN Global Base Allocation	يال	F 11006	\$4,826,838	34,825,839	* 4 enc one
FRAM Funding (covous)	72	F 11005	\$4,050,050	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Quisily-Based Procedures (corolina)	:		\$0	I———	
MORL'EC Base Allocation	. 4	1 11010	\$0		\$1
MOHETO Office fulkling envelopes EHIN One Taile		F 11014	¥0		
MOHLTC One Tame		E 11008	\$0		\$6
Paymaster Flow Through		1.012	\$0		şc
Service Recipient Revenue			. 50	\$0	\$0
Sublotal Revenue LHINGHETC	ा क	F 11050 to 11890 Sum of Rows 1 to 9	\$6		
Recoveries from Externat/Internal Sources	11	F 120*	\$4,625,838		\$4,626,838
Donations	- 4:	E 140*			
	18	F 130° to 190°, 110°, [excl. F 11008, 11008, 11010,	. 90	I	
Olitics Funding Sources and Other Reviews		235° \$40° 161° 161°	\$0	\$0	\$0
Sublotal Other Revenues] [4	135°, 140°, 161°, 151°! Sum of Rows 11 to 13	Participation of the Contract	0.705 \\ 2.50 \\ #a .	. 15 (1. 15) A 1. 14 (1. 16 1. 16
TOTAL REVENUE FUND TYPE 2	15	Sum of Rows 10 and 14	£4.626.020	\$4,525,838	\$4,625,638
EXPENSES FROM A CONTROL OF THE PROPERTY OF THE					04,020,035
Compensation	:: <u>, </u>				
Salarics (Worked hours + Benefit hours cost)	17	F 31010, 31030, 31030, 35010, 35050, 35090	\$3,165,038	\$3,166,038	\$3,166,038
Senetit Contributions Employee Future Denetit Companisation		F 31040 to 31085 , 35040 to 35085	9677,988	\$677,968	\$877,968
		F 305*	\$0,	. 80	\$0
Physician Compensation Physician Assistant Compensation		F 390"	\$0	60	\$0
Nurse Precisioner Compensation		F 390°	50	\$0	. \$0
All Other Medical Staff Compensation		E 380.	80	501	50
Scassonal Fees	123	F 390*, [excl. F 39092]	\$0	\$0	\$0
Service Costs	. [24	F 39092	\$49,993	\$49,899	\$49,889
Med/Shirikal Supplies & Orags	Lac	h= rate =	<u>) 14 9 3,000,</u>	2	
		F 460", 465", 560", 565"	\$2,500	\$2,500	\$2,500
Supplies & Swidry Expenses	20	F4* 5* 6*	\$509,333f	\$509,533	\$509,333
Community One Time Expense	₹. _~ ,,	[ex: , F 460*, 465*, 560*, 665*, 69526, 69571,		4000,000	4005,000
Egsprient Expenses		F 69596 F 7*, (exc), F 750*, 780*]	90	\$0	\$0
Assortization on Major Equip, Softward License & Fees	20	[F 750' , 760'		508	
Contracted Out Expense		E Br		\$0	\$0
BulkSage & Grounds Expanses	35	F9", [excl. F950"]	501		\$0
Doitling Amerization	32	F9*	\$220,000	\$229,000	\$220,000.
TOTAL EXPENSES Fund Type 2	33	Sum of Rows 17 to 32	\$0,525,938	30	\$0 \$4,625,838
NET SURPLUSIDEFICITI FROM OPERATIONS	74	Row 15 minus Row 33	\$0		14,625,836
Amortization - Granta/Donalfons Revenua	35	F 131", 141" R 151"	\$0	\$0 30	50
A BANKS A PARTIES AND A STATE OF THE STATE O	100	26 5 7 5 7 6 6 5 7 7 7 7 8 7 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8 7	artification of the same	3.55 to 1.55 t	~~~
SURPLUSIDEFICIT Incl. Amortization of Grants/Donations	130	Sum of Roys 34 to 35	\$0	\$0	50
FLACO TYPE 3 * OTHER: Total Rovanue (Lype 3)			d – kirk karatik k		
Total Rovelide (Type 3) Total Expenses (Type 3)		F1	\$704,765	\$704,755	\$704,755
NET SURPLUS ROSFICIT) FUND TYPE 3	38	F3-F4*, F5', F8', F7', F8" F8	\$704,755	·· \$704,755	\$704,755
FUND TYPE 1 - HOSPITAL	133	Row 3) intrus Row 38	\$0	···· \$ D	1500 A 5 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Total Revenue (Type 1)	1	<u> </u>	ra e e <u>e e</u> que de justica de la co	in problém je problém i se	<u> </u>
Total Expenses (Type 1)	40	F3*F4*, F5', F6', F7*, F8', F9*	<u>\$0</u>	\$6	50
RET SURPLUSIONERICITY FUND TYPE 1	42		\$0		\$0
ALL FUND TYPES			50	\$0	\$0
Total Revenue (AX Funds)	43	Line 13 + line 32 + line 35	PE DE CAN	DE DO CON	
Total Expenses (All Funds)	44		\$5,330,593 \$5,330,593	\$5,330,593	\$5,330,593
RET SURPLUSAGERICATION ALL FUND TYPES	45	Row #3 minus Row #4	\$0,330,393	\$5,330,593}	\$5,330,593
Total Admin Expenses Altocated to the TPREs	<u> </u>			50	- 50
Undishibulisi Accounting Centres	46	92'	sol	\$0	:
Admin & Support Services	47	72 1	\$844,371	\$844,371	2944,371}
Management Cifnical Services Medical Resources		72 5 05	\$0	\$0	\$0
ncedicar (lesquices		72 5 07		sot	
Total Admin & Undistributed Expenses		Sum of Rows 46-50 lineluded in Fund Type 2	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,		
I Washing chinesings Exhalists	50	expenses above)	\$844,371	3844,371	\$844,371

SCHEDULE C - REPORTS COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH AND ADDICTIONS SERVICES

Only those requirements listed below that relate to the programs and services that are funded by the LHIN will be applicable.

A list of reporting requirements and related submission dates is set out below. Unless otherwise indicated, the HSP is only required to provide the required information on the funding that is provided under this Agreement. Reports that require full entity reporting are followed by an asterisk ***.

OHRS/MIS Trial Balance Submis	sion (through OHFS)
2014-15	Due Dates (Must pass 3c Edits)
2014-15 Q1	Not required 2014-15
2014-15 Q2	October 31, 2014
2014-15 Q3	January 31, 2015
2014-15 Q4	May 31, 2015
2015-16	Due Dates (Must pass 3c Edits)
2015-16 Q1	Not required 2015-16
2015-16 Q2	October 31, 2015
2015-16 Q3	January 31, 2016
2015-16 Q4	May 31, 2016
2016-17	Due Dates (Must pass 3c Edits)
2016-17 Q1	Not required 2016-17
2016-17 Q2	October 31, 2016
2016-17 Q3	January 31, 2017
2016-17 Q4	May 30, 2017

Supplementary Reporting - Quar Reconciliation Report	terly Report (through SRI) and Annual
2014-2015	Due five (5) business days following Trial Balance Submission Due Date
2014-15_Q2	November 7, 2014
2014-15 Q3	February 7, 2015
2014-15 Q4	June 7, 2015 - Supplementary Reporting Due
2014-15 ARR	June 30, 2015
2015-2016	Due five (5) business days following Trial Balance Submission Due Date
2015-16 Q2	November 7, 2015
2015-16 Q3	February 7, 2016
2015-16 Q4	June 7, 2016 - Supplementary Reporting Due
2015-16 ARR	June 30, 2015
2016-17	Due five (5) business days following Trial Balance Submission Due Date
2016-17 Q2	November 7, 2016
2016-17 Q3	February 7, 2017
2016-17 Q4	June 7, 2017 - Supplementary Reporting Due
2016-17 ARR	June 30, 2017

SCHEDULE C - REPORTS COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH AND ADDICTIONS SERVICES

Board Approved Audited Finance	lal Statement*
Fiscal Year	Due Date
2014-15	June 30, 2015
2015-16	June 30, 2016
2016-17	June 30, 2017

Declaration of Compliance	
Fiscal Year	Due Date
2013-14	June 30, 2014
2014-15	June 30, 2015
2015-16	June 30, 2016
2016-17	June 30, 2017

Community Mental Health and Addictions Other Reporting Requirements			
Requirement		Due Date	
Common Data Set for Community Mental Health Services (2007)	Last day of the month following the end of Q2 and Q4 (Year-End) reporting periods		
	 2014-15 Q2 2014-15 Q4 2015-16 Q2 2015-16 Q4 2016-17 Q2 2016-17 Q4 	October 31, 2014 May 31, 2015 October 31, 2016 May 31, 2016 October 31, 2016 May 31, 2017	
DATIS (Drug & Alcohol Treatment Information System)	Fifteen (15) busine and Q3 - Twenty (2 End (Q4) - 2014-15 Q1 - 2014-15 Q2 - 2014-15 Q3 - 2014-15 Q4 - 2015-16 Q1	uss days after end of Q1, Q2 20) business days after Year- July 22, 2014 October 22, 2014 January 22, 2015 —April-30, 2015 July 22, 2015	
	 2015-16 Q2 2015-16 Q3 2015-16 Q4 2016-17 Q1 2016-17 Q2 2016-17 Q3 2016-17 Q4 	October 22, 2015 January 22, 2016 April 28, 2016 July 22, 2016 October 24, 2016 January 23, 2017 May 2, 2017	
ConnexOntario Health Services Information Drug and Alcohol Registry of Treatment (DART) Ontario Problem Gambling Helpline (OPGH) Mental Health Service Information Ontario (MHSIO)	health and/or addic Organization Repo ConnexOntario He	ved funding to provide mental ctions services must sign an rting Agreement with ealth Services Information, reporting requirements.	

SCHEDULE C - REPORTS COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH AND ADDICTIONS SERVICES

 2014-15 - April 30, 2015 2015-16 - April 30, 2016 2016-17 April 30, 2017	
 <u> </u>	_

SCHEDULE D - DIRECTIVES, GUIDELINES AND POLICIES COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH AND ADDICTIONS SERVICES

Only those requirements listed below that relate to the programs and services that are funded by the LHIN will be applicable.

]	····
Operating Manual for	Chapter 1. Organizational Components
Community Mental Health and Addiction Services	1.2 Organizational Structure, Roles and Relationships
•	1 Comment of the state of the s
(2003)	 1.3 Developing and Maintaining the HSP Organization / Structure 1.5 Dispute Resolution
	- Dispute Mesologion
	Chapter 2. Program & Administrative Components
	2.3 Budget Allocations / Problem Gambling Budget Allocations
	2.4 Service Provision Requirements
	2.5 Client Records, Confidentiality and Disclosure
	2.6 Service Reporting Requirements
	2.8 Issues Management
	2.9 Service Evaluation / Quality Assurance
	2.10 Administrative Expectations
	Chapter 3. Financial Record Keeping and Reporting Requirements
	3.2 Personal Needs Allowance for Clients in Some Residential
	Addictions Programs 3.6 Internal Financial Controls (except "Inventory of Assets")
	3.6 Internal Financial Controls (except "Inventory of Assets") 3.7 Human Resource Control
	5.7 Figure Congro
 Early Psychosis Intervent 	ion Standards (Nov 2010)
Ontario Program Standard	is for ACT Teams (2005)
Intensive Case Manageme	ent Service Standards for Mental Health Services and Supports (2005)
Grisis-Response-Service S	Standards for Mental Health Services and Supports (2005)
Psychiatric Sessional Fun	ding Guidelines (2004)
 Joint Policy Guideline for 	the Provision of Community Mental Health and Developmental Services
for Adults with Dual Dlagn	
Addictions Ontario Withdr	awal Management Standards (2008)
Ontario Admission Discha	rge Criteria for Addiction Agencles (2000)
Admission, Discharge and	Assessment Tools for Ontario Addiction Agencies (2000)
South Oaks Gambling Screen	een (SOGS)
 Ontario Healthcare Report 	ing Standards – OHRS/MIS - most current version available to
applicabl e year	

SCHEDULE D - DIRECTIVES, GUIDELINES AND POLICIES COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH AND ADDICTIONS SERVICES

- Community Financial Policy (2011) (Note #1)
- Guideline for Community Health Service Providers Audits and Reviews, August 2012

Note #1: Community Financial Policy

A process has been initiated for reviewing the Community Financial Policy (2011) that includes MOHLTC, LHINS and community sector representatives.

Schooule Et: Coré Indrators - All Sectors

Core Indicators - All Sectors

Healthcare Service Provider:

Canadian Mental Health Association, "hunder Bay

:					37.			
renormance Indicators		Target	Performance Standard	· ::- %: · ::: %:-	Targot	Performance	Target	Porformanco Standerd
% Total Margin (Note 1)		97.0	% Desk	(9%0	%O#A	35-0	%da.
Fund Type 2- Balanced Budget (Note 2)		0	0	il Vylas	3	0	0	
Proportion of Budget Spent on Administration (Note 3, Note 4)		11,6%	<12.7%		11.8%	<12.7%	11.5%	< 12.7%
Variance Forecast to Actual Expenditures		%0.0	₩ ₩ ₩		2,0,0	%9 ×	7,0'0	۷69
Variance Forecast to Actual Units of Service		0,0%	×5%		0.0%	× 5%	0.0%	v 5%
Percentage of Acute ALC Days (Closed Cases) (Note 5)		15.0%	<= 15.0%	S E	er er	081	Q81	130
				J				
Explanatory indicators								
Cost per Individual Served (by program/service)	-							
Olient Experience (client satisfaction surveys)								

CORE INDICATORS. ALL SECTORS

Healthcare Service Provider:

Canadian Mental Health Association, Thunder Bay

OHRS Description	Health Service Activity	Tary of	Performance Standard	Target	Standard	Targot	Standard
72.5 09.76 Dado Managoment - Montal Maellt.	Fututino oquivolons (TT로) * (Eorned Hours) divided 89 153m 타타	4.20	N/A	4,20	N/A	4,20	N/A
에는아, Plant Memaganah - Nanta ' Fe 는 호 같다	Visits Paos-to-faça, Tolophono In-Rouse, Centración Out	2500	2250-2750	2500	2250-2750	2500	2250-2750
The state of the s							
72 8 de 73 Capa Management - Nortal Health	i fidikiouble Sarvad by Puncipna. Certas ar as appropriate Individuale Sorvac by Organizaden	103	80-120	100	8C-120	100	80-120
72 6 39 73 Good Management - Mercial Moalth	Tetal Dest for Fulpatenal Contra	\$ 241,044	N/A	\$ 241,044	N/A	\$ 241,044	N/A
72 6 10 78 41 MV (Quaheusos	Full-fina oquivalanta (PTE) ((Samad Houtt, dividad by 1950k 77.E	1150	N/A	12.50	N/A	11.50	N/A
72 5 to 78 41 MH Chubhousas	Allondansa Days Fasanas-feco	1730	16150-17850	17000	1615C-1785D	1,7000	16250-17850
72.5 10 T6 41 MH Chibheusos	indylatats Sarves by Fund ohal Contra or ac epprapriate Individuals Served by Organization	260	208-322	260	208-312	253	208-312
	Total Best for Fundional Bonito	\$ 512,743	A/k	\$ 513,743	K/A	\$ 913,743	N/A
72 6 10 78 51 kin Early intervanden	28	12.00	N/A	12.00	N/A	31.00	N/A
72.5 to 78.51 GM Early Intervention	Visio Parchierizos, Yalaphano In-Houto, Convocado Out	4845	4361-5330	4845	4361-5330	4845	4861-5330
72 5 10 76 61 All Sany Intervention	i jedvidútje Sanaží by Punstonal Cohre or ad opprapristo Indiklátials Sanad by Organizatian	98	77-115	86	77-125	96	77-5.15
			-				
72 § 10 79 §1 MH Sopy (c;anveqdan	Tetal Dest for Functional Centro	\$ 1,025,632	34/54	5 1,023,632	30,04	\$ 1,028,632	N/A

*FIEL That tendence Court Coat. These valves and provided for informalies perpasses only. Accounteedly included:	mykled for intermalies perposes mer. They are not	zorkhis	the second	201	2015/16	2016M7	45
OHRS Description	Health Service Activity) Essa (Performanco Standard	Target	Portomance Standard	to Elet	Performence Stondard
72 5 10 78 58 VM Sivoralar and Court Suppar.	Fulcaso equivalants (FTE) * (Eamod flours) divest by 1853= FTE	0.93	N/A	55.0	N/A	0.93	N/A
72 5 1 3 76 56 AH Diversion and Count Suppor	Viule Faza-te-tepa, Totophono In-Houeu, Gerinadod Out	425	346-510	425	340-510	425	\$46-510
72 8 10 76 56 VM Chemier, and Court Support	Individuals Seved by Furcherial Canter or as ১৮৮ চকর্মত Individuals Served by Crystallan	80	86-43	8	64-96	28	96-79
72 5 10 78 59 AIN Diversion and Court Support	Total Doc. to Fulketenal Contra	28896	M/A	\$ 96,833	N/A	\$ 96,833	N/A
72.5.15.76.5/clt Intervention - Mental Hoats	Fullding seuhabaje (FTE) Edmod Haun) divided by 1950= FTE	18.43	К/А	18.42	N/A	18.42	N/A
72 & 16 78 Chais intervensen-Mantal Health	Vielis Pazadok aca, Tetahong In-Havao, Donbadod Oct	12300	11685-12915	22300	11685-12915	12300	11685-12915
시bank Lanckandon - Indones 77 등 15 73 Cate & Information - Indonesia Research	Individuals Served by Euratoma Certico er sa apartorizata Individuals Servad by Organization	1925	1733-2118	1925	2733-2118	1625	1735-2118
72 5 18 76 Crtes Interevulen - Kevilei Haalin	Tolal Cost for Functional Carter	\$ 1,318,105	N/A	\$318,135	Ν/Α	\$ 1,318,105	N/A
72 5 40 78 50 Res. Mortal Heaks - Shed Term Office Support Bads	Fulking equivalents (FTE) (Cannot Hours) Mixed by 1850s FTE	2.03	ŊΆ	2.00	N/A	2.00	N/A
72 8 40 76 46 Res. Martal Health - Shert Torm Chies Support Bods	thethonbhasiderd Days	180	144-216	180	144-216	180	144-226
72.5.40.76.60.3cs, Mantal Houth - Short Torn Crids Support Books	Individuals Servad by Pointings, Contro et established individuals Servad by Cranization	52	42-62	25	42-52	22	25-23
72 S 40 76 89 Ras, Montal Houlth - Short Tomn Chale Eupport Back	Talb. Ceut for Functional Contro	\$ 188,1.0	N/A	\$ 188,110	N/A	\$ 188,110	N/A

Schedule E2c. JBRA Specific Indicators

Sector Specific Indicators- Mental Health & Addictions Sector

Healthcare Service Provider:

Canadian Mental Health Association, Thunder Bay

- F		٠	न		erose y The	(jeuge ner		1
۱		Ξ:						*	
	<u> </u>		1						
	Ē	-					: :		
١	Standard	H				4.5.0			
			١						
뒭		 -	١						
7		П	1			4. E. T.	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
-	-	1	ļ			1.			
	Tanget	1	.]					78.33	
	Ι-		ŀ						
1	· .	[_]				V. (1)			
4			4	100			, 9. A		
٠İ	;		١				- 18 dig		
٠,	ਰੂ - ਹ ਸ								
1	arforman e Standard						·. • (1)		.
	or is		1			447	H. 194		기
امِ	Ľ.								
퉨	. ::	<u>ب</u>	١.		`#`#\``.		1.) A.	e daga san Kabupatèn	::[
뭐		Π	·		. 5 · 1 · . . 1 · 1 · · · ·				
:	t	[4	
	jallet						,		
	标:			1, 1, 1, 1/2, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1					ી
: :		Ц	ŀ			1 (. : 1 .		. 4, 10	
			4	1.7					
	1				::	1	1	T	
	2 7	H	٠1						
٠.	Marmane Standard	!	1						П
••	arforman Standard] [1 . 1		
w	å	1		1. \\.	ŧ		쁍	1 _	
014/16		۳		7.0		Š	Ē	ş	
R	: }	П	.		Ö	\$	ပိ	ıtis	
- :	75				Mental Health Conditions	8	to Initial Assessment Complete	omplete to Service Initiation]:
١.	E				ő	8	nss.	Ž	
٠.	-	1	1		둂	[# I	25 55 56	Š	
÷		Ц	٠. ا		<u> </u>	8	4	1 5	
÷		• • •	:		亞	1 sta	₩.	! 품	+
		П	·	5	9	! <u>ĕ</u>		G	
					Þ] 😤 [5		
				2	15°	🙀	cat	¥	
				ž	Day	8	[편]	Ses	
ľ			. :		8	8	MA A	188	
١.	٠ 6	1	:	<u> </u>	this.		E E	<u> \(\bar{\pi} \) \(\bar{\pi} \)</u>	
	. •				± 1	1 15 1	1 15	1 1	4 · 1
	gg S		:	a l	<u>}</u>		nic	<u> </u>	1:1
r	ndicato			ā	w sils	isits w	E S	i Ea	
	to Indicato			Explanatory Indical	w Visits w	y Visits w	d from R	d from I:	
	ance Indicato			ā	w silsiV you	ency Visits w	sited from R	aited from It	
	ormance Indicato		· ·		ergency Visits w	ergency Visits w	Waited from R	Waited from It	
	erformance Indicato		: .		Emergency Visits w	Emergency Visits w	ays Waited from R	ays Waited from It	
	Performance Indicate		<i>:</i> .		ed Emergency Visits w	ed Emergency Visits w	of Days Waited from R	d Days Waited from It	
	Performance Indicators		7.		duled Emergency Visits w	duled Emergency Visits w	er of Days Waited from R.	er of Days Waited from It	
	Performance Indicate		2.		cheduled Emergency Visits w	cheduled Emergency Visits w	mber of Days Waited from R	mber of Days Waited from It	
	Performance Indicate				Inscheduled Emergency Visits w	Inscheduled Emergency Visits w	Number of Days Waited from R	Number of Days Waited from It	
	Performance Indicate				at Unscheduled Emergency Visits w	at Unscheduled Emergency Visits w	ge Number of Days Waited from R	age Number of Days Waited from I:	
	Performance Indicato				Repeat Unscheduled Emergency Visits within 30 Days For	Repeat Unscheduled Emergency Visits within 30 Days for Substance Abuse Conditions	Average Number of Days Waited from Referral/Application	Average Number of Days Waited from Initial Assessment C	

LHIN Local Indicators- LHIN Specific

Healthcare Service Provider:

Canadian Menta; Health Association, Thunder Bay

\$990 \$390 \$160 \$160 \$160 \$160 \$160 \$160 \$200		201	2014/15 Fortomanne	2	2015/16		2016/17	_
Cost per Chit of Service by Fenction Centre All Sectors All Sectors All Substance Alt Edubhauses Alt Edubhauses Alt Edubhauses Alt Edubhauses Alt Edubhauses Alt Edubhauses Alt Eduphauses Alt Edup		Tan.	Standard	1000年	Penormance	T.	Performance	
Mil Sactord Te Cabe Manapentent - Meribi Health Te Cabe Manapentent - Meribi Health Te St Mil Cluthrause. Te St Mil Chernaton and Ceurt Support Te							outrio de la constante de la c	
78 Si MM Early Intervention - Metteu Hearth 78 Chible Intervention - Metteu Hearth 78 Chible Intervention - Metteu Hearth 78 Si MM Early Intervention - Metteu Hearth 78 Si MM Early 78 Si MM Early Intervention - Metteu Hearth 78 Si MM Early 7	33				· 医结合性			
78 Clate Mintervention 78 St. Mint Euchtwaren 78 St. Mint Eucht Intervention 78 St. Mint Eucht Intervention 78 St. Mintervention - Merical Hearth 78 Citals Intervention - Merical Hearth 78 Ed Reac, Mentals Hear								
78 Ff MH Clubhauses. 78 Sf MH Early Intervention 78 Sf MH Diversion and Court Support 78 Crisial Intervention - Merical Hearth 78 Ed Rea, Menical He	78 Cape Manaporatent - Merdel Mepipi							
78 ST MM Early briancentrion 78 ST MM Early briancentrion 78 St MM Diversion and Court Support 78 Crisia Intervention - Nortest Support Boos 78 Ed Rock, Mental Matthr. Short Term Critics Support Boos 78 Ed Rock, Menta			97.00	288	\$ 596	085	96\$\$	• •
78 ST MM Early Intervention 78 St MM Diversion and Court Support 79 St Rec. Ments Houth. Sharil Term Crist Support Boos 19 St Rec. Ments Houth. Sharil Term Crist Support Boos 19 St Rec. Ments Houth. Sharil Term Crist Support Boos 10 PROSECTION OF THE PROSECTI		336	S \$39	\$35	5 \$38	523		
78 St MH Diversion and Ceurt Support 78 Crisia Intervention - Moreau Hearth 78 Ed Reck Ments Houth - Shart Term Crisis Support Boos 78 Ed Reck Ments Houth - Shart Term Crisis Support Boos 78 Ed Reck Ments Houth - Shart Term Crisis Support Boos 78 Ed Reck Ments Houth - Shart Term Crisis Support Boos 78 Ed Reck Ments Houth - Shart Term Crisis Support Boos	78 S1 MH Early Intervention	KARA						<u> </u>
78 Crisia Intervention - Montau Naumn 78 Crisia Intervention - Montau Naumn 78 Ed Rec. Mentas Houth. Sharil Term Crists Support Bods Processing the Processing of the Proce			23165	2180	\$ \$165	3150	5 8465	_
78 Ed Reck, Mental Hauth - Sharif Term Critic Support Boos 79 Ed Reck, Mental Hauth - Sharif Term Critic Support Boos 79 Ed Reck, Mental Hauth - Sharif Term Critic Support Boos 79 Ed Reck	78-36-MH Diversion and Court Support	336	765.5	agy .				_
79 Ed Reck, Mentals Haufth, Sharif Term Critical Support Boos	D. C. Perent and Mary Mary 1975				2 234		7885	_
78 EG Rock, Mental Houth Sharif Term Crists Support Boosa Notes	A CITAL INCIDENT - MORE NAMED		5 \$107	383	2005 5			
Note:	78 80 Ros. Ments Haufb., Shard Term Crist. Surgest Bases						,nr.	
Notes TENES	PAID hadden was the little and the l	3100	2,24(0	\$100	S \$136	\$100	\$ \$416	
Notes Ask 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19		95	100					
Notes Triver 11 HSP				785	× 20	8	2 20	
Notes Fresh		200	250	[a	93 V			
Notes Presented							28.5	
Notes HHSP GHSP If HSP		23	\$ \$0	05	05 ₹	g		_
Notes Notes Part			1 000					
Executables		1	25.4	0.00	03 VI	04	08 5	
ff #SP budget is > LBIN upper contain-for the FQ, Taget = upper Duti of performants contribut, Certifor = lextor of 420% of 18 to 19 to 18 to 1		Telegraphics monicosolos	zz (Bb/mPonchmark):			1 W 1 W 1 W 1 W 1 W 1 W 1 W 1 W 1 W 1 W		
THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY O		of HSP budget is a LAIN up. If HSP budget is between 1 If HSP budget is a 1984 Blv	per comportor the FC, Target Min BM torgot and upper cor Target, Eurone a HXP business	a upper Drift of performant Hider, Target a HSP busget, (Conflict a property of No. 10	e toaridos, Carridos a lesso Carridos e L'HIN benchmark	nof (20% above Target) and for upper contider	(HSP budgat)	
				ira i ari) na isawai 9 – wani	Actes in LPV appariment that	ne NSP badget, and (they p	M target)	
			N. (A. C.	The experience of the Conference		8 B 15 C 17 C 17 C 18 C		

Schiedulo E4a: Loqal Performance Onligations - NW LHIN Wide

Canadian Mental Health Association, Thunder Bay

LHIN Local Indicators- LHIN Specific

Healthcare Service Provider:

Page 1

Configation Portormance	The HSP will collaborate with stakeholders with planning, implannantation and reporting related to adoption of the Youne First philosophy. The HSP will implanment its LHN approved cross-billural completency plan. In cases where the plan has no been andorsed by the LHN, the HSP will work with the LHN to arrend the plan is specessary. The HSP will report back on progress made on implementation as requested by the LHN. The Hasilia Service Provider will work with the North West LHIN and partners to: The Hasilia Service Provider will work with the North West LHIN and partners to: Implement the Bohadoural Support Chantel Strategy: Implement the bands population transplants the cheation of combon dere pathways and commit to interests care for the tards; population transplants.
Local Portormance Obligation	The HSP will implement its LHN approved chast-billural competency plan. In cases where the plan has been endorsed by the LHN, the HSP will work with the LHIN to arrend the plan as raccessary. The HSP will expert back on progress make on implementation as requested by the LHIN. The Health Service Provider will work with the North West LHIN and partners to: Implement to Behaviourst Supports Ontain Action Protect Plan and partners to: Implementation to Behaviours Supports Ontain Action Action Plan and partners to Behaviours Support Ontain Action (Action Plan and partners) and committee the for the tables population transply the chadion of common care pathways and committee.
Performance Supports Ontario (BSO) Action Plan requirement Performance Perjormance Perjormance Perjormance Perjormance Displace D	LIHIN approved cross-outural competency plan. In cases whole the plan has not the MSP will work with the LHM barrand the plan is specessary. The MSP winder implementation as requested by the LHM. Jet will work with the North West LHM and partners to: Jet will work with the North West LHM and partners to: Jet supports Ontario Action Plan and pechlishade in quality improvement training suppert Cottain Strategy:
Portomance Portomance Deformance Deformance Portomance Deformance	s LHN approved cross-cultural competency plan. In cases where the plan has not N, the HSP will write with the LHM to anrend the plan as recessary. The HSP will race on implementation as requested by the LHM. Accept implementation as requested by the LHM. In the HSP will receive the HSP will accept the LHM. In the HSP will receive the HSP will be accepted to the contract of the plantage and commit to these population travership the creation of common care pathways and commit to
Local Deligation	
Performance Local Local Local Local Performance Performance Performance Cistigation	N. De Rey was troit want to a trib to great the property of the little. According to the property of the little and partners to: Support Charle Charles Worth West I. His and partners to: Support Charles Charles to the little and partners to the partners that the little in the partners that the charles the charles to the partners that the charles the charles to the control the charles to the partners and commit to
Obligation Local Local Dorlomance Obligation Cidigation Cidigation Cidigation Cidigation Cidigation Cidigation Cidigation Cidigation	for will work with too North Weet Lith and partners to: red Support Charle Action Plan and partners to: Support Charle Strategy: These peculiation traceging the creation of common care pathways and commit to
Local Local Local Dorformance Porformance Colligation Colligation Colligation	for will work with the North West Little and partners to: Lest Supports Onsole Action Plan and periopate in quality improvement training Support Chande & Falsagy: These perturbant transplants of common tere pathways and commit to
Local Dollgation Diligation Cidigation Cidig	for will work with the North West LHIM and partners to: rest Supports Onsule Action Plan and seniopate in quality improvement training Support Oxide & Variegy: the perturbing transpire of common care pathways and commit to
Local Deligation Deligation Coligation Coligation Coligation Coligation Coligation Coligation Coligation Coligation	for will work with the North West LHIN and partners to: set will work with the North West LHIN and partners to: Supports Onsarle Systems Plan and seniopate in quality improvement training Support Oxford Systems Support Conditions of common care pathways and commit to
Local Defigation Obligation Cidigation	for will work with the North West Little and partners to: set Supports Onsule Action Plan and setticipate in quality improvement training support Octable Settlesgy: set post Catable Settlesgy: set post Introget the creation of common care pathways and commit to
Local Deformance Derformance Derformance Derformance Deformance Disligation Deformance Disligation Deformance Disligation	for will work with too North West Little and partners to: set Supports Ontario Action Plan and perhipipate in quality improvement training Support Octario Systems; They population transply file creation of common core pathways and commit to
Performance Deligation Local Deligation Cidigation Cidigation Performance Cidigation Cidigation Cidigation Cidigation Cidigation Cidigation	atel Supporta Orizaite Actoe: Plan and extraopate in quality improvement usining Support Oxidate Stategy: These seculation tracegh file creation of common core pathways and commit to
Obligation Local Local Colligation Obligation Colligation Colligation	Support Catalo Statiogy. They population tracycly the creation of common care pathways and commit to
Local Disligation Cidigation Local Ferformance Obligation	riges, population through the grospon of companies paraways and contribute
Liceting Popularing Popularing Colifigation Colifigation Colifigation Colification Colification Colification Colification Colification Colification Colification Colification	
Lices: Portormance Obligation Civilgation	es i, reignes to this sublegy.
Local Portomance Cisligation	
Licesia Performance Obligation Colligation Colligation Colligation Colligation Colligation Colligation Colligation Colligation Colligation	
Local Displacement	The state of the s
Policentrance Coligation Coligation Coligation Coligation Coligation Coligation	the assistance in the case the process for contracted for with the North West LH
Local Perorian	
Local Local Performance Obligation	
Local Performance Obligation	
Local	
Local: Performance Obligation	
Local Ferformance Obligation	
Performance	The LEDill confehens in the development and implementation of a harmorized North West LHIN election
uope Bildo	duent teradions of the Alan
Amended: <u>Aprid 1, 2014</u>	
Amended: Japid 1, 2014	
Management of the second secon	
(170)	The HSP viri ensure that any information Technology Information System suplementations material to
Supe	provincial (elecain Ontaria) and local (North West Litin) strenging and Tacheti Plans will be aligned
Obligation - Oblig	second of these Plans
######################################	

LHIN Local Indicators- LHIN Specific

Healthcare Service Provider:

Canadian Mental Health Association, Thunder Bay

e identifying and promoting throwative approaches to infegrated health tate delivery with a facus on improving the diskit experience through injeroved treastitions to take across the continuum, improving access year plan to manage the Reath care system in the North West LHDs. The provincial Heath Link initiative is aligned to this local plan and is being implemented in conjunction with the Bluephint at the Integrated District Network lovet. Note details about the Elusphat and Health Links in the North West LHDs are available at Align its strategic and operating eativales with the 2x-sorial and Health Link objectives one local archites;
 Continue to collaborate with stateholders with planning, implementation and reporting related to the implementation of the Blucprint and Health Links, and formalize this commitment to collaboration through a The North West LikilN is implementing the North West LHIN Hearth Services Blueprizh (the Blueprint), a ten-Collaboration for the bluoprint and Health Licks, and formalize this commitment to solicitoristic the Collaboration Agreement (e.g. providing human resource expension, data and enablysis to the Narth West Lirik, Health Lirik Steering Committees or Werking Sevups, or Local, District and Regional Planning Tables at necessary to Inform and support planning and implementation activities. Play an endiverse role in the implementation the Studprint and Health Liriks through:

o Activoly teading and charactering Blueprint and Health Liriks Innough: o implementation of standardixed, quality based eare pathways, processes and associator; standardized o Participatom in knowbogo exchange forums, charrels and value streen mapping assalons; o Reallignment of services and related delivery as necessory; o Coordinators of implementation activity, including statisholder satistics, communications and charge o Formal zing planting and changioning Blueprint and Health Links through:

o Formal zing planting tables at the Local Health Hub and Elegrated Dietriz Notwork Javels;
o in late planting partitional sectors both Lithrhunded and for Lithrhunded providers;
o in late planting and implementation activities with a focus on system level improvement across the improving the across to care, and improving value for health care collars; or Providing ontoling education to staff, pertinar and public stakeholders; To advance the implementation of the Blueprint the HSP will. http://www.northwestlhin.or.ex/. initiativos; and Alignor Constitution of the Constitution of Co Performance Obligation Poliformanco Obligation 020 Description: Hearth Services Blueprint Requirement Amended: April 1, 2014 Sector: All Sectors Sector A mondod: Description

Healthcare Service Provider: Thunder Bay Sector: Losal Performance Sector: Cobligation Project Name Sector: Cobligation	Association, 2016/16	2016/17
Obligation Contigation Continue Continu		
Local Performance Obligation Local Performance Local Performance Costigation Obligation Obligation Costigation		
Local Performance Quilgadon Local Performance Cotal Performance		
Local Performance Obligation Codigation Obligation		
Local Performance Chigadon Local Performance Codal Performance Codal Performance Codal Performance		
Chilgadon Local Performance Chocal Performance Chocal Performance Chocal Performance		
Local Performance Deligation Codigation Codigation		
Local Performance Congador Cotal Performance Cotal Performance		
Local Performance Obligation Local Performance Coaligation		
Local Performance Chilgation Coaligation		
Local Performance Obligation		
Local Performance Obligation		কৈনে
Local Performance Obligation		<u> 2- 13-1</u>
Local Performance Obligation		
Lices, Performance Obligation		
		<u> </u>
		No.
		<u> </u>
Control of the contro	11. 20.000	
Section Obligation Protect Name		<u>. v 3 1 1 0 4 2</u> 0

SCHEDULE F - PROJECT FUNDING AGREEMENT TEMPLATE

Project Funding Agreement Template

Note: This project template is intended to be used to fund one-off projects or for the provision of services not ordinarily provided by the HSP. Whather or not the HSP provides the services directly or subcontracts the provision of the services to another provider, the HSP remains accountable for the funding that is provided by the LHIN.

THIS PROJECT FUNDING AGREEMENT ("PFA") is effective as of [insert date] (the "Effective Date") between:

NORTH WEST LOCAL HEALTH INTEGRATION NETWORK (the "LHIN")

- and -

[Legal Name of the Health Service Provider] (the "HSP")

WHEREAS the LHIN and the HSP entered into a service accountability agreement dated [insert date] (the "SAA") for the provision of Services and now wish to set out the terms of pursuant to which the LHIN will fund the HSP for [insert brief description of project] (the "Project");

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of their respective agreements set out below and subject to the terms of the SAA, the parties covenant and agree as follows:

1.0 Definitions. Unless otherwise specified in this PFA, capitalized words and phrases shall have the meaning set out in the SAA. When used in this PFA, the following words and phrases have the following meanings:

"Project Funding" means the funding for the Services;

"Services" means the services described in Appendix A to this PFA; and

"Term" means the period of time from the Effective Date up to and including [insert project end date].

- 2.0 Relationship between the SAA and this PFA. This PFA is made subject to and hereby incorporates the terms of the SAA. On execution this PFA will be appended to the SAA as a Schedule.
- 3.0 The Services. The HSP agrees to provide the Services on the terms and conditions of this PFA including all of its Appendices and schedules.
- 4.0 Rates and Payment Process. Subject to the SAA, the Project Funding for the provision of the Services shall be as specified in Appendix A to this PFA.

SCHEDULE F - PROJECT FUNDING AGREEMENT TEMPLATE

5.0	Representative	8	S	for	P	P	١.

- The HSP's Representative for purposes of this PFA shall be [insert name, (a) telephone number, fax number and e-mail address]. The HSP agrees that the HSP's Representative has authority to legally bind the HSP.
- The LHIN's Representative for purposes of this PFA shall be: (insert name, (b) telephone number, fax number and e-mail address].
- Additional Terms and Conditions. The following additional terms and conditions are 6.0 applicable to this PFA.
 - (a) Notwithstanding any other provision in the SAA or this PFA, in the event the SAA is terminated or expires prior to the expiration or termination of this PFA, this PFA shall continue until it expires or is terminated in accordance with its terms.
 - (b) [insert any additional terms and conditions that are applicable to the Project]

of the date first above
·

SCHEDULE F - PROJECT FUNDING AGREEMENT TEMPLATE

APPENDIX A: SERVICES

- DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT
- 2. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES
- OUT OF SCOPE
- 4. DUE DATES
- 5. PERFORMANCE TARGETS
- 6. REPORTING
- 7. PROJECT ASSUMPTIONS
- 8. PROJECT FUNDING
 - 8.1 The Project Funding for completion of this PFA is as follows:
 - 8.2 Regardless of any other provision of this PFA, the Project Funding payable for the completion of the Services under this PFA is one-time finding and is not to exceed [X].

SCHEDULE G - FORM OF COMPLIANCE DECLARATION

DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE

Issued pursuant to the M-SAA effective April 1, 2014

The Board of Directors of the [insert name of LHIN] Local Health Integration To:

Network (the "LHIN"). Attn: Board Chair.

The Board of Directors (the "Board") of the [insert name of HSP] (the "HSP") From:

[insert date] Date:

[insert date range - April 1, 201X -March 31, 201x] (the "Applicable Period") Re:

Unless otherwise defined in this declaration, capitalized terms have the same meaning as set out in the M-SAA between the LHIN and the HSP effective April 1, 2014.

The Board has authorized me, by resolution dated [insert date], to declare to you as follows:

After making inquiries of the [insert name and position of person responsible for managing the HSP on a day to day basis, e.g. the Chief Executive Office or the Executive Director) and other appropriate officers of the HSP and subject to any exceptions identified on Appendix 1 to this Declaration of Compliance, to the best of the Board's knowledge and belief, the HSP has fulfilled, its obligations under the service accountability agreement (the "M-SAA") in effect during the Applicable Period.

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the HSP has complied with:

- Article 4.8 of the M-SAA concerning applicable procurement practices; (i)
- The (ii)
- The following specific performance requirements as outlined in Schedule E4 of the 2014-(iii) (iv) a. Home First Philosophy requirement 2017 M-SAA:

 - Diversity Planning requirement
 - c. Behavioural Supports Ontario (BSO) Action Plan requirement
 - d. Emergency Preparedness Plans requirement
 - e. E-Health requirement
 - f. Information Technology requirement
 - g. Health Services Blueprint requirement

[insert name of Chair], [insert title]

Schedule G – Form of Compliance Declaration Cont'd.

Appendix 1 - Exceptions

[Please identify each obligation under the M-SAA that the HSP did not meet during the Applicable Period, together with an explanation as to why the obligation was not met and an estimated date by which the HSP expects to be in compliance.
